# **USER MANUAL**

**ProDAQ VXI Data Acquisition Systems** 

# ProDAQ 3080 Gigabit Ethernet VXIbus Slot-0 Interface



PUBLICATION NUMBER: 3080-XX-UM-1030



Copyright, © 2014, Bustec Production, Ltd.

Bustec Production, Ltd. Bustec House, Shannon Business Park, Shannon, Co. Clare, Ireland Tel: +353 (0) 61 707100, FAX: +353 (0) 61 707106

## **PROPRIETARY NOTICE**

This document and the technical data herein disclosed, are proprietary to Bustec Ltd., and shall not, without express written permission of Bustec Ltd, be used, in whole or in part to solicit quotations from a competitive source or used for manufacture by anyone other than Bustec Ltd. The information herein has been developed at private expense, and may only be used for operation and maintenance reference purposes or for purposes of engineering evaluation and incorporation into technical specifications and other documents, which specify procurement of products from Bustec Ltd. This document is subject to change without further notification. Bustec Ltd. Reserve the right to change both the hardware and software described herein.

# **Table of Contents**

CHAPTE	ER 1 - INTRODUCTION	5
1.1	Overview	5
CHAPTE	R 2 - GETTING STARTED	7
2.1	Unpacking and Inspection	7
2.2	Installing the ProDAQ 3080 Interface	
2.2.		8
2.2.2		9
2.3	Connecting the ProDAQ 3080 Interface	9
	Accessing the ProDAQ 3080	11
2.4.		
2.4.	2 Discovering the ProDAQ 3080 using VXI-11 Broadcast	13
СНАРТЕ	R 3 - WEB PAGE OPERATION	15
3.1	Instrument Home Page	
3.2	IP Configuration	
3.3	VXIbus Instruments	
3.3.		
3.3.	2 Resource Manager Output	
3.3.	3 VXI Trigger Control	
3.4	Device Status	23
3.4.		
3.5	System Log	
3.6	Device Configuration	
3.6.		
3.6.	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	
3.6.	0	
3.6.	1 5	
3.6.	5	
3.6.		
3.6.		
3.7	Datasheet and Manual Pages	
CHAPTE	R 4 - REMOTE OPERATION	34
4.1	TCP/IP Instrument Access	
4.2	Mapped Interface Access	34

# Table of Figures

Figure 1 - Logical Address Switch Location	8
Figure 2 - Installing the ProDAQ 3080 into a C-Size Mainframe	9
Figure 3 - ProDAQ 3080-AA/BA Ethernet Port(s)	10
Figure 4 - Using Bustec Agent to search for mDNS enabled devices	12
Figure 5 - Using DNSSD Firefox add-on to discover the ProDAQ 3080	
Figure 6 - Instrument Home Page	
Figure 7 - IP Configuration Page, secondary Network Interface is disabled	17
Figure 8 - ProDAQ 3080-BA IP Configuration Page, both network interfaces enabled	19
Figure 9 - VXIbus Instruments Page	20
Figure 10 - Instrument Information and Access Page	21
Figure 11 - Instrument Memory I/O	21
Figure 12 - Resource Manager Output Page	22
Figure 13 - VXIbus Trigger Control	23
Figure 14 - Device Status Page	24
Figure 15 - Advanced Status Page	25
Figure 16 - System Log Page	26
Figure 17 - Device Configuration Page	26
Figure 18 - General Configuration Page	27
Figure 19 - Security Settings Page	28
Figure 20 - VXIbus Settings Page	28
Figure 21 - Interrupt Configuration Page	30
Figure 22 - CLK10 Configuration Page	31
Figure 23 – Firmware Update Page	32
Figure 24 - Firmware Upload Progress	33
Figure 25 - VISA Configuration Utility	35
Figure 26 - Add New Interface Dialog	35
Figure 27 - Map Network Interface Dialog	36
Figure 28 - Updated Available Interfaces List	
Figure 29 – Updated list of configured interfaces	37
Figure 30 - Resource Manager	
Figure 31 – Bustec VISA Assistant	38

# **Chapter 1 - Introduction**

# 1.1 Overview

The ProDAQ 3080 Gigabit Ethernet VXIbus Slot-0 Interface provides access to VXIbus instruments through a standard Gigabit LAN interface using the VXI-11 protocol. It is designed to function as a bridge between the established, time-tested and proven base of VXIbus instruments and the IEEE 802 Ethernet, which allows you to build any size of test and measurement system simply by connecting the instruments via standard LAN to your computer.

The ProDAQ 3080 provides up to two standardized Gigabit LAN interfaces with support for the VXI-11 protocol and an embedded WEB interface. It utilizes the new Tundra Tsi148 bridge to support the 2eVME block transfers specified in the revision 3.0 of the VXI standard in addition to all standard transfer modes. This allows for high-speed data transfers while maintaining backward compatibility to existing VXI rev. 1.3, 1.4 and 2.0 instruments.

The ProDAQ 3080 is fully compliant to the VXI*plug&play* standard. Access to the 3080 and the VXIbus instruments is provided through a standard VISA library. This allows for backward compatibility with existing VXI*plug&play* drivers and application software. The VXIbus resource manager is embedded in the 3080 firmware and automatically executed at power-up. The embedded WEB interface allows configuring and controlling the ProDAQ 3080 VXIbus Gigabit LAN Slot-0 interface and provides access to the VXIbus instruments via a standard WEB browser.

Communication with the host processor via the front-panel Gigabit Ethernet port(s) is done via standard Cat 5e Ethernet cable for distances up to 200 meters. Low-cost Gigabit Ethernet switches can be used to increase the maximum distance as well as to connect multiple mainframes to a single host or to integrate multiple mainframes and hosts into a network.

#### Note:

To achieve maximum performance, connect the ProDAQ 3080 to a host featuring a Gigabit LAN interface. If you are using switches or hubs in your network connection, make sure that they conform to the Gigabit Ethernet standard and are able to operate at that speed.

For synchronization in legacy systems, the ProDAQ 3080 features a front-panel trigger input/output and CLK10 I/O via SMB connectors.

This page was intentionally left blank.

# **Chapter 2 - Getting Started**

The ProDAQ 3080 Gigabit Ethernet VXIbus Slot-0 Interface is a single slot, C-size VXIbus instrument and can be installed in any slot of a standard C-size VXI mainframe. To be Slot-0 controller for the VXIbus system, it must be installed in the leftmost slot of the VXI mainframe (slot "0"). If it is installed in any other slot of a VXI mainframe, all slot-0 capabilities (MODID, CLK10, etc.) will be automatically turned off.

## Attention:

To allow access to instruments in the VXI mainframe, the ProDAQ 3080 MUST be installed in the leftmost slot of the VXI mainframe (slot "0"). Installing it into any other slot will only allow you to access the device itself (e.g. for configuration purposes).

Installing it into any other slot will only allow you to access the device itself (e.g. for configuration purposes). If you do so, please make sure to set up the logical address correctly to avoid any collision with a slot-0 device already present in the mainframe.

#### Note:

The ProDAQ 3080 Gigabit Ethernet VXIbus Slot-0 Interface does not extend the VXI backplane between mainframes in a multi-mainframe system. This means that devices sharing the local bus must be installed in the same mainframe.

To install the ProDAQ 3080 Gigabit Ethernet VXIbus Slot-0 Interface and the necessary software on your system, use the installation sequence as described in this chapter:

- Step 1: Unpacking and Inspection
- Step 2: Installing the ProDAQ 3080
- Step 3: Connecting the ProDAQ 3080 Interface
- Step 4: Bustec VISA installation (please refer to Bustec VISA Library and Tools User Manual)
- Step 5: Accessing the ProDAQ 3080

# 2.1 Unpacking and Inspection

All ProDAQ modules are shipped in an antistatic package to prevent any damage from electrostatic discharge (ESD). Proper ESD handling procedures must always be used when packing, unpacking or installing any ProDAQ module, ProDAQ plug-in module or ProDAQ function card:

- Ground yourself via a grounding strap or similar, e.g. by holding to a grounded object.
- Remove the ProDAQ module from its carton, preserving the factory packaging as much as possible.
- Discharge the package by touching it to a grounded object, e.g. a metal part of your VXIbus chassis, before removing the module from the package.

- Inspect the ProDAQ module for any defect or damage. Immediately notify the carrier if any damage is apparent.
- Only remove the module from its antistatic bag if you intend to install it into a VXI mainframe or similar.

When reshipping the module, use the original packing material whenever possible. The original shipping carton and the instrument's plastic foam will provide the necessary support for safe reshipment. If the original anti-static packing material is unavailable, wrap the ProDAQ module in anti-static plastic sheeting and use plastic spray foam to surround and protect the instrument.

# 2.2 Installing the ProDAQ 3080 Interface

To prevent damage to the ProDAQ module being installed, it is recommended to remove the power from the mainframe or to switch it off before installing.

#### 2.2.1 Configuring the Logical Address

To allow a host to control the VXI devices in the mainframe via the network using the ProDAQ 3080, the ProDAQ 3080 must be installed as the slot-0 controller for the mainframe, i.e. it must be installed in the leftmost slot of the mainframe (slot "0") and must be configured for using logical address 0 (zero).

The logical address switch is located on the back of the module. Figure 1 shows the location of the logical address switch on the ProDAQ 3080. Set each switch to 'Off' for a logical one (1) and to 'On' for a logical zero (0). The picture shows the address switch set to logical address zero (0).



Figure 1 - Logical Address Switch Location

#### 2.2.2 Installing the ProDAQ 3080 into the Mainframe

Insert the module into the mainframe using the guiding rails inside the mainframe as shown in Figure 2. Push the module slowly into the slot until the backplane connectors of the module seat firmly in the corresponding backplane connectors. The top and bottom of the front panel of the module should touch the mounting rails in the mainframe.



Figure 2 - Installing the ProDAQ 3080 into a C-Size Mainframe

#### Note:

To ensure proper grounding of the module, tighten the front panel mounting screws after installing the module in the mainframe.

# 2.3 Connecting the ProDAQ 3080 Interface

The ProDAQ 3080 is equipped with one or two standard RJ-45 network connectors, accepting standard Cat 3, Cat 5, Cat 5e and Cat 6 Ethernet cables. However, to run the interface in a network using 1000BASE-T mode, in minimum Cat 5e (better Cat 6) cables are required.

The figure on the next page shows the location of the LAN connector(s) on the ProDAQ 3080-AA and ProDAQ 3080-BA front panel. The connector features two LED indicators showing the speed and the link status of the connection made (see Table 1).



Figure 3 - ProDAQ 3080-AA/BA Ethernet Port(s)

LED	Color	Description
	Off	No link
SPEED	Yellow	10BASE-T/100BASE-T operation
	Green	1000BASE-T operation
ACT	Off	No Activity
ACT	Blinking Green	Activity proportional to bandwidth utilization.

Table 1 - LAN Status Indicators

### 2.4 Accessing the ProDAQ 3080

In order to get the full access capability to ProDAQ 3080 (mapping to VXI), the Bustec VISA must be installed and used for communication. Other connection methods – to the web interface, or using TCPIP-type VISA resource may be achieved by, respectively, any web browser or VISA library.

By default, the ProDAQ 3080 uses DHCP to configure its network interface. If no DHCP server is found in the network, it will attempt to obtain a network address using AutoIP. The AutoIP addresses are allocated from the reserved range 169.254.1.0 - 169.254.254.255. The ProDAQ 3080 will select a random address from that range. If the address is already in use, another trial is done until there are no conflicts. By using the embedded web interface, the ProDAQ 3080 can be also configured to use a static IP address.

If the IP address is known, the web interface can be opened by typing the address in any web browser:

```
http://<IP ADDRESS>
```

The device can be also accessed (with any VISA) using the following resource string:

TCPIP<n>::<IP ADDRESS>::vxi0::INSTR

#### 2.4.1 Accessing the ProDAQ 3080 using Multicast DNS

ProDAQ 3080 announces, using mDNS that it provides "http" and "vxi-11" interfaces. In order to make use of it, a Multicast DNS service must be running on the host. With mDNS host name it is possible to access the device not knowing the actual IP address.

Multicast DNS services are provided for Windows by Bonjour (available at <u>www.apple.com</u>) and for Linux by Avahi (available at <u>www.avahi.org</u>).

The default mDNS service name for ProDAQ 3080 is:

Bustec Ltd - ProDAQ 3080 - <SERIAL NUMBER>

And the default host name is:

prodaq3080-<SERIAL NUMBER>.local

With the default host name, accessing the web interface is achieved with the following HTTP address:

```
http://prodaq3080-<SERIAL NUMBER>.local
```

#### And the VISA resource can be accessed with:

TCPIP<n>::prodaq3080-<SERIAL NUMBER>.local::vxi0::INSTR

The host name may be changed by the user, so having an automatic search for mDNS enabled devices is very useful. The user doesn't need to know neither the IP address nor the host name of the device. If Bonjour (Windows) or Avahi (Linux) is running on the host, the Bustec Agent tool makes use of it. It scans for the available devices, lists them and allows opening their web interfaces.

32-bit VISA			
Bustec VISA Config	and a second second second	-	
VISA 64 bit Conflict	-	-	
Bustec Resource Manual Action of the second seco			
Bustec VISA Assista			
Bustec VISA Monito	)F		A REAL PROPERTY AND A REAL
LXI Devices			Bustec Ltd - ProDAQ 3080 - 00103393
😵 Help			Bustec Ltd - ProDAQ 6100 - 10487864
Run Resource Mana	ager automatically on Hot Plug event		Bustec Ltd - ProDAQ 6100 - 10487839
About		10	
Quit			

Figure 4 - Using Bustec Agent to search for mDNS enabled devices

There are other tools that give similar functionality as well. For example: DNSSD add-on for Firefox, available at <u>addons.mozilla.org</u>.

🔹 🛃 🐵 bioqedjoj	80-00103393.local.		💱 🔻 C 🚺 - Groph	P 🕇 🛙
ProDAQ 610 • ProDAQ 610	es ProCVVQ 2000 - 00103393 0 - 109 - 10409100 0 - 100 - 10409100 Browser Configuration Options	- Diagnostic Information		
/XIbus Instruments	Instrument Model	ProDAQ 3080-AA (V/0bus Gigabit-LAN Slot-0 Interface)		
levice Status	Manufacturer.	Bustac Ltd		
iyatem Log	Bertal Number	00103393		
wvice Configuration	Host Name	PmDAD3080-00103393 local		
latasheet	mDNS Service Name	Bustec Ltd - ProDAQ 3080 - 00103383		
lanual	MAC Address	00.01 af 18:18 af		
	TCP/IP.Address	192.168.2.80		
	Current Time	Fri: 15 Mar 2013 09:50:25 UTC		
	Time Source	SYSTEM		
	Instrument Address String	TCPIP: 192 168 2 80 INSTR		
	User Description	Bustec Ltd - ProDAQ 3080 - 00103393 - VXibus Gigabit-LAN S	lot-0 interface	
	Asset Number	<not assigned=""></not>		
	Firmware Revision	12		

Figure 5 - Using DNSSD Firefox add-on to discover the ProDAQ 3080

#### 2.4.2 Discovering the ProDAQ 3080 using VXI-11 Broadcast

The Bustec VISA Configuration Utility can be used to discover ProDAQ 3080 modules using the VXI-11 protocol. To discover ProDAQ 3080, the device type VXI with device number 0 must fit within the search criterion (it does by default). The discovered ProDAQ 3080s are added to the Network Instruments list as VISA resources:

TCPIP<n>::<IP ADDRESS>::vxi0::INSTR

For the detailed description of the procedure please refer to Bustec VISA Library and Tools User Manual.

This page was intentionally left blank.

# Chapter 3 - WEB Page Operation

The ProDAQ 3080 features an embedded WEB server, which allows you to configure and operate the ProDAQ 3080 by using a standard WEB browser from any host computer in your network.

# 3.1 Instrument Home Page

The instrument home page shows general information about the device like model number, manufacturer, serial number, and revisions. For the network interface respectively both network interfaces in case of the ProDAQ 3080-BA, the IP address(es), MAC adress(es) and instrument address string(s) are shown. Please note that the instrument address string is not the one used in all operation modes, see Chapter 4 - Remote Operation.

bustec		ProDAQ 3080 VXIbus Gigabit-LAN Slot-0 Interface	
Home P Configuration	Instrument Home Pa	ge	
VXIbes instruments	instrument Wodel	ProDAQ 3080-8A (Vilbus Grgate-LAN Stat-9 Interface)	
Device Status	Manufacturer	Bustec Ltd	
System Log	Serial Number	00103393	
Device Configuration	HostHame	ProDAQ3080-00103393.iocal	
Datasheet	mOttilS Service Mame	Bushec Ltd - PreD4Q 3080 - 00103393	
Hannal	NAC Address	00-01-#F-10-10-0F (Vetwork Interface #1) 00-01-38-00-14-F3 (Network Interface #2)	
	TOP/IP Address	192,168,2,158 192,198,2,157	
	Current Time	Tue, 08 Oct 2013 09:43 55 UTC	
	Time Source	SYSTEM	
	Instrument Address Sking	TCPIF: 192.168.2.156.04STR TCPIF: 192.168.2.157.04STR	
	User Description	Bustec Ltd - ProD4Q 3080 - 00103393 - Vilibus Gigabit-LAN Stot-0 Interface	3
	Asset Number	<not assigned=""></not>	
	Firmware Revision	12.1	

Figure 6 - Instrument Home Page

From here you can navigate to the different categories and pages by using the menu on the left side.

For security reasons, all pages except of the instruments home page are protected by username and password, which can be configured on the "Device Configuration" -> "Security Settings" page. Upon delivery, the username and is set to "admin" and the password to "1234".

# 3.2 **IP** Configuration

The IP Configuration Page shows the current settings and allows you to change the configuration for the ProDAQ 3080's LAN interface(s). Network Interface #1 is present on both versions (-AA and -BA) of the ProDAQ 3080 and is always enabled. On the ProDAQ 3080-AA the secondary interface is not available and therefore permanently switched off in the IP Configuration Page. On the ProDAQ 3080-BA, the secondary Interface may be switched on and off.

🔶 🌌 🎤 🗟 192	168.2158/lanconlig.html	ी र C 🚺 र Gaya 🖉 🐥 🏚
ustec 27		ProDAQ 3080 VXIbus Gigabit-LAN Slot-0 Interface
ome	ID Configuration	
Configuration	IP Configuration	
dius instruments	Hootname	ProDA03080-00103303
rvice Status	User description.	Bustec Ltd - ProDAQ 3080 - 00103393 - Vilibur Gigabit LAN Skel 0 Interface
stem Log		
wce Cueñguration	Network Interface #1	
tasheet	MAC Address	00-01-4F-10-18-DF
enual	Gummi IP Address	192.188.2.158
	Current Subnet Mask	255 255 255 0
	Current Datauit Gateway	182.188.2.1
	TCFIF Mode	IZIDHCP assigned → □Auto1P → IZ Static IP
	IP Address	192.108.2.158
	Subnet Maek	255 255 255 0
	Default Gateway	192.168.2.1
	ито	3000
	Network Interface #2	
	MAC Address	00-01-08-09-14#3
	Current DNS Server(s)	192 168 2 220
	Current Units Server(s)	192 188.2.1
		EHCP
	ONS Server(s)	1977.1958.2.220
	Back	mDNS Service Hame Resol form Save and restart network

Figure 7 - IP Configuration Page, secondary Network Interface is disabled

The displayed configuration and user-editable settings are the following:

Hostname	User defined hostname for the device (without domain). Clear this value to revert to factory default.
	Note: Multicast DNS domain is always: ".local". Dynamic DNS domain depends on the network configuration.
User Description	User defined description of the device – it is displayed on the Home Page along with user defined Asset Number (see Device Configuration).

	Clear this value to revert to factory default.
MAC address	Shows MAC address of the Network Interface.
Current IP configuration	Displays currently assigned: IP Address and Subnet Mask – for each of two Network Interfaces, Default Gateway – only for the primary interface and DNS servers – common.
TCP/IP mode	Specifies whether the device shall use a DHCP server in the network, or AutoIP protocol to automatically obtain the IP configuration, or maybe the static IP configuration defined in the form below.
	More than one option may be selected. The priority is as follows: DHCP $\rightarrow$ AutoIP $\rightarrow$ Static. For example, if DHCP and Static are selected and DHCP fails, the Static configuration is set.
	Note: Only one of the Network Interfaces may use AutoIP option. If none of them are configured to use DHCP, at least one DNS server IP address must be defined by the user.
IP Address	If "Static IP" was selected as the TCP/IP mode, this field allows assignment of a static IP address to the ProDAQ 3080 LAN interface(s).
Subnet mask	If "Static IP" was selected as the TCP/IP mode, this field allows assignment of a static subnet mask address to the ProDAQ 3080s LAN interface(s).
Default Gateway	If "Static IP" was selected as the TCP/IP mode, this field allows assignment of a static default gateway for the routing of IP packets.
	Note: Due to common routing rules it is possible to define one Default Gateway – here only for the primary Network Interface.
DNS Servers	If none of the Network Interfaces are configured to use DHCP, these two fields allow you to specify the DNS server the ProDAQ 3080 will use for name resolving. Otherwise it is possible to select whether the DNS servers' IP addresses shall be acquired automatically (DHCP) or user-defined (Static).
ΜΤυ	Maximum Transmission Unit (MTU) – maximum size (in bytes) of an IP packet that can be transmitted without fragmentation (including IP headers, but excluding headers from lower levels in the protocol stack). Each Network Interface has own MTU setting.
	The default value for a typical network is 1500 bytes. It can be defined as high as 9000 bytes (jumbo frames). For correct interoperation, the whole network must have the same MTU. To achieve the maximum performance, it is recommended to configure the network to work with a MTU settings as high as possible.

#### mDNS Service Name

User defined name of mDNS services that are advertised by the ProDAQ 3080.

Clear this value to revert to factory default.

* 🔯 🗡 -0.10	18219 hours grant		Grie C 🖬 - Saya	2 8 8
astec 2		ProDAQ 3080 VXIbus Gigabit-LAN Slot-0 Interface		÷X.
	IP Configuration			
bes to the way	Hutture	P=(0402880-0042280		
wa Stein	Unir deborginus	Restor Lto - ProDAD tates - 6010 118 ( - classic Goppolit, 4V Stolio Meleta)e		
aven Log	Course interview	And the second second second second second second		
in a Configuration	Network wantaco #1			
Internal	MAC ARRIVES	88.41.4F-16-16-02F		
	Carriel P Address	192 Feb.2 196		
	Current Summer March	285.286.296.0		
	Current Delaut Galaxies	18210221		1
	1CR/IP Work	ECHCPressioned → ECHADP → ETHACP		
	# address	the tild tild		
	Data and Man	275.275.275.8		
	Delaul Calevay	102 108.2.1		
	60%)	3090		
	CHINARY MINISTER IN			
	BAC Address	10-11-05-00 (4/2 D		
	Cuswell? Address	192,192,2121		
	Current Support Hispoir	255.286.285.0		-
	1CENTING I	ECHCP anignel -+ EAds P+ Willats P		
	PADE01	102 108 3 107		
	Barret Black	254.256.201.0		
	Artu	2060		
	Current Civili Server) (1	Tel: 190.0000 Tel: 190.01		
		# D-CP C Max		
	DRIE Beverals	102 NA 1228		
	1.4			

Figure 8 - ProDAQ 3080-BA IP Configuration Page, both network interfaces enabled.

# 3.3 VXIbus Instruments

The VXIbus Instruments Configuration page shows a table with the VXIbus instruments identified by the embedded resource manager on start-up.



Figure 9 - VXIbus Instruments Page

By pressing the "More..." buttons to the right of an instruments entry, a separate page with additional information about the particular device is shown (see 3.3.1), where you can perform basic I/O operations in a way similar to the VISA assistant.

The "Show Resource Manager Output" button displays the log file written by the embedded resource manager on start-up.

The "VXI Trigger Control" button lets you access a page where you can set the routing of the VXIbus backplane trigger lines and the ProDAQ 3080 front panel trigger I/Os.

#### 3.3.1 Instrument Information and Access

The "Instrument Information and Access" page shows detailed information about the VXIbus instrument as discovered by the embedded resource manager.

🔶 🌄 🙁 prodag30	80-00103393 Jocal / Instronting_more	.mmilla-8	알 두 연 🔃 • Goople	P 🕈 🛍
		ProDAQ 3080 VXIbus Gigabit-LAN Slot-0 Interface		₩XI
tome P Configuration /Obus Instruments	VXIbus Instrumer			
Device Statun	Logical Address	0		1
System Log	Sut	0		-
Device Configuration	Wanufacturer ID	Bustec (0xe70)		
atasheet	Nodel Name	ProDAD 3080 (0x008)		
tanual	Device Class	Register-based		
	Address Space	A16		
	Back	6	Memory P	Basic #O

Figure 10 - Instrument Information and Access Page

Depending on the type of instrument you can perform basic memory or message based access operations on the device by selecting the "Memory I/O" or "Basic I/O" buttons at the bottom of the page.

lustec Ltd. + ProDAQ 3080-A. + 🛃 🕘 prodaqX	00-00100399 Jocal, Jestcodig, min.)	hendtast) t∑ = C   <mark>S</mark> + Gagie A	÷ E
bustec		ProDAQ 3080 VXIbus Gigabit-LAN Slot-0 Interface	hus
Home IP Configuration V30bas Instruments	VXIbus Instrumer		
Device Status		VXBus Instrument at Logical Address: 0 (Manufacturer: Bustec, Model Name: ProDAQ 308	00
System Log	Address Space	VLA10_SPACE +	
Device Configuration	Address Offset	0x0000 - +	
Manual	Data Width	VI_WIDTH_36 •	
	Write Data	0x0000 • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	1
	Read Data	OXFE20 - + BHEK ODEC OBN	
	Returned Status	0x00000000: The operation completed successfully	
	Back	Read Write	

Figure 11 - Instrument Memory I/O

#### 3.3.2 Resource Manager Output

The "Resource Manager Output" page lets you review the output of the embedded VXIbus resource manager.

Bustec Ltd ProDAQ 3080-A	A - 9010339 +			200	C N- Soge	P 🕈 🗉
	12 12 10					
bustec	VXIb	us Gigabit	DAQ 3080 -LAN Slot-0 Inte	rface		
Home	VXIbus Instruments					A
IP Configuration	a second s					
VXIbus Instruments	Resource Manager Output					
Device Station						
System Log	Bustec VXI Bescurce Manager v	er, 4,1.0,6445M				
Device Configuration						
Datasheet	Interface VXI0					
Menual	Blot LA Device E O Seguster 7 3 Register 4 1 Message Writing Output File:	Address Al6 Only Al6/A32 Al6 Only	Base Sise 0x20000000 0x10000000			
	/tap/buresman.out					
	0 VXI 7 3 VXI 4 7 VXI	0 INSTR 0 INSTR 0 INSTR	i :	n n x		
	VXI Device Table					
	Configured Interface VEID Slot Manufacturer (14) E Bustet (#70) 7 Bustet (#70) 4 Bacal Insta (ffb)	Nodel (1 ProDAg 3080 (0 ProDAg 3180 (0 Unknown Card (2	008) Register Based c6c) Register Based	Ready		
	Memory Map Slot Address Space VXIO 0 Al6 Cmly		Size			
	VAID 7 Al6/A32 VAID 4 Al6 Chly	0x20000000	Cx1000000			
	Back					

Figure 12 - Resource Manager Output Page

#### 3.3.3 VXI Trigger Control

The "VXI Trigger Control" page allows you to route the VXIbus trigger lines from/to the front panel trigger I/Os on the ProDAQ 3080.

By choosing the "Front Panel Trigger In" selection for any or all of the VXIbus TTL and ECL trigger lines or the Front Panel Trigger Output line, any trigger received on the front panel trigger input line of the ProDAQ 3080 will be routed to any or all of the chosen lines.

While "Unrouted" and "Front Panel Trigger In" are the only possible sources for trigger events for the VXIbus TTL and ECL Trigger lines, the front panel trigger output line can also receive trigger events from the VXIbus TTL and ECL trigger lines.

In addition to routing the trigger lines, each of the trigger lines can be asserted, deasserted or a pulse can be generated by using the buttons "Assert", "Deassert" or "Pulse" to the right of each trigger line source selection.

austec 1	12 10 11 10 12 10 10 12 17 17 147 1 172	Pro VXIbus Gigabit	DAQ 3080 -LAN Slot	-0 Interface	غا ا	Z
tome P Configuration	VXI Trigger Contro	ol				
70bus Instruments	Destination	Source	Status			
Jevice States System Log	Backplane TTL0	Unrouted	<ul> <li>Not asserted</li> </ul>	Asset Desset	Pulse	
Device Configuration	Backplane TTL1	Unrouted	Not asserted	Assert Deassert	Pulao	
Datasheet	Backplane TTL2	Unrouted	<ul> <li>Not asserted</li> </ul>	Assert Deassert	Pulse	
turual	Backplane TTL3	Unrouted	Not asserted	Asset Desset	Pulse .	
	Backplane TTL4	Utrouted	<ul> <li>Not asserted</li> </ul>	Asset Deasset	Putse	
	Backplane TTL5	Unrouted	· Not asserted	Assert Deassert	Pulse	
	Backplane TTL6	Unrouted	Not asserted	Assert Deassert	Pulse	
	Backplane TTL7	Unrouted	- Not asserted	Assert Doossert	Pulse	
	Backplane ECL0	Unrouted	Not asserted	Assert Deassert	Fiése	
	Backplane ECL1	Unrouted	Not asserted	Assert Dessort	Pulse	
	Front Panel Trigger In		+ Not asserted	Assert Deesset	Pulse	
	Front Panel Trigger Out	Unrouted	Not asserted	Assert Deassert	Pulse	
	Back	7			Unmag all triggers Rate	sh

Figure 13 - VXIbus Trigger Control

## 3.4 Device Status

The "Device Status" page shows the overall status of the ProDAQ 3080 and its network connection. For a more detailed status, select the "Show advanced status" button at the bottom.

Bushec Ltul - ProDAQ 3060-8A					heeld	
• • 10/162.2		ProDAQ 3080 VXibus Gigabit-LAN Slot-0 Interface	in a G i S - Sample		X	
Home IP Configuration	Device Status					
VXbus instruments	Status	107				
Device Status	System Status	Ready			_	
System Log	Network Interface #1	1000Mb/s - Full Duplex			2	
Device Configuration	Network Interface #2	1000Mo/a - Full Duplex				
Datasheet	Back		Retest	Show advanced sta	ALC:	
Manust	Na la N		(a			
opynghi ili 1997-2013 Busten List					we burled	0001

Figure 14 - Device Status Page

#### 3.4.1 Advanced Status

The "Advanced Status" page allows you to view the output of several tools and contents of configuration files available on the ProDAQ 3080. To switch between the different outputs/files, just select the tool/file with the combo box at the bottom. The "Refresh" button allows updating the status.

Nustec Ltd ProDAQ 3080-B-	A - 0010339. +	₽	Hori-Bill
🔹 🌠 📵 192.168.2	158/ develation_adv. Atomi	순 * C 🔣 - Strapie	P 4 6 E
bustec 27	VXibu	ProDAQ 3080 s Gigabit-LAN Slot-0 Interface	₩X.
Rome P Configuration	Advanced Status		
VXbus instruments	ifconfig		
Device Statur System Log Device Configuration Datasheet Manuat	ut machacht Annun Mu RX packetailS41 ertoraid TX packetailS41 ertoraid colliginneid tagetteilS RX pyreailS5965 (2014) e Base amireasidx6000 sthi link encaptEthernet HWm inte ederil321.062.3.557 UP machacht RUMPHH MUL RX packetailS7 erroraid ollisinneid tagpateleisi RX backetailS7 erroraid	<pre>Buser:187.188.2.295 Meek:252.255.255.0 ITCAIN MUN900 Meetinoit decoppedit overrunnit frame:0 decoppedit overrunnit darrier15 10000 b) TX bytes:167415 :163.4 %b) white Od:d1:06:0d:14:85 Boser:182.388.3.255 Meek:255.255.255.0 ITCAIN MUN5000 Meeric:1 decoppedit overrunnit frame:0 decoppedit overrunnit frame:0</pre>	
	Back	Select the information set to be displayed. If config	- Refrash

Figure 15 - Advanced Status Page

The following tools and configuration files are available:

ifconfig	Shows the output of the "ifconfig" utility with detailed information on the network interface status. For detailed information, please refer to the Linux manual page for "ifconfig".
route	Shows the routing table as seen by the embedded Linux kernel on the ProDAQ 3080.
resolv.conf	Displays the contents of the <i>resolv.conf</i> file. The resolv.conf file is maintained by networking scripts and shows the current nameserver configuration in use by the ProDAQ 3080 kernel.
hosts	Displays the contents of the <i>hosts</i> file. The <i>hosts</i> file contains the known host aliases.
device.conf	The <i>device.conf</i> file holds the static settings configured via the "IP Setup" page.
device and firmware revision	Shows the revisions of the different parts of the system.

# 3.5 System Log

The "System Log" page shows the output of the kernel logging facility.

Xpeborg 🖲 🌄 🔶	00-00100393 Jocal, wydrag hand	tit = C R + Gospie	P 👘
bustec	ProDAQ 3080 VXIbus Gigabit-LAN Slot-0 Interface	i	¥X.
Home	System Log		
P Configuration	aystem Log		
etnemurðarif aud0CV	Log started at: Tue, 12 Nar 2013 12:52:29 UTC		
Device Status	All timestamps are in UTC:		
System Log	Mar 12 12:52:29 (none) lightpd(796) (mod_fastcgi.c.2462) unexpected end-of-file (perhaps the fastcgi proce		
Device Configuration	Mar 12 12 52:29 (none) lightpd[796] (mod_fastcgi c 3254) response not received, request sent 2019 on so- closing connection	cket: unic/varitur/lightlpdfcgi.socket for /lan	config html ,
Detasheet	Mar 12 12:52:29 (none) BUFCGI: initializing access to the device.		
Marnial (	Mar 12 12:52:29 (none) BUFCGL initializing log thread Mar 12 12:52:29 (none) BUFCGL evening socket. Mar 12 12:52:29 (none) BUFCGL initializing FCGI request. Mar 12 12:52:24 (none) BUFCGL initializing FCGI request. Mar 12 12:52:24 (none) didleter De/CPRELEASE on ath/b to 192 168:2.1 port 67 Mar 12 12:52:44 (none) didleter De/CPRELEASE on ath/b to 192 168:2.1 port 67 Mar 12 12:52:44 (none) didleter De/CPRELEASE on ath/b to 192 168:2.1 port 67 Mar 12 12:52:44 (none) didleter De/CPRELEASE on ath/b to 192 168:2.1 port 67 Mar 12 12:52:44 (none) didleter bend_packet Network is unreachable Mar 12 12:52:24 (none) didleter bend_packet Network is unreachable Mar 12 12:52:24 (none) didleter bend_packet Network is unreachable Mar 12 12:53:27 (none) logit CUALUP AT 150 BY root Mar 12 12:53:27 (none) logit DQH 10:0490 Mar 12 12:551:54 (none) lightbq(796) (server.c 12:53) NOTE: a request for famconitg intent timed out after writer ptoblem increase server mark-write-ide Mar 12 12:53:52 (none) – MARK –	ng 14600 bytes. We waited 360 seconds. If t	N5 8
			Retresh

Figure 16 - System Log Page

# 3.6 Device Configuration

The device configuration is split up into several sub-items.

Ofpeborg 🕒 🐕 🔶	0-00103393 Jocal. Heve public html		한 또 한 🔣 • Sospie	P 🛉 🛍
bustec		ProDAQ 3080 Xibus Gigabit-LAN Slot-0 Interface		
Home IP Configuration	Device Configuratio	n		
Villous instruments Device States	General Bettings	Change		
System Log	Security Settings	Change		
Device Configuration	Villaus Bettings	Change		
Datasheet	Interrupt Configuration	Change		
Manual	CLK19 Configuration	Change		
		Rebost Device		
		Firmware update		
	Back			



Click on one of the buttons to the right of the different sections to access it. Each sub-item lets you configure a part of the ProDAQ 3080.

In addition the page contains two buttons to either reboot the device or to update the firmware.

#### 3.6.1 General Settings

This page allows you to change the system time and assign an asset number to the device, which will be shown on the instrument home page.

	00-00103393.Jocal./Itexcoldig_gen.html		1) 또 연 🔣 - Sospie	P 👘
ustec	vi Vi	ProDAQ 3080 Cibus Gigabit-LAN Slot-0 Interface	3	÷X.
ome • Configuration XDes instruments	Device Configuration	n		
exice Status ystem Log	Set Master PTP Date/Time	12 • Mar • 2013 • 13 • 27 • 13 • UTC •	8	
exice Configuration	AssetNumber	C		
atasheet	Back		Resetform	Bave values
lanual				
		R		

Figure 18 - General Configuration Page

#### 3.6.2 Security Settings

On this page you can change the password that is used to protect the pages of the ProDAQ 3080. Please type in your old password, the new one and confirm it by re-typing.

Ofpeborg 🖲 🚰 🚸	00-00103393.Jocal./Idevcovilig_sec.html			한 🔻 C 🔛 - Google	P 🕇 🛙
bustec		Pro Xibus Gigabit	DAQ 3080 t-LAN Slot-0 Interface		<b>₩XI</b>
Home IP Configuration VXDass Instruments	Device Configuration Security Settings				
Device States System Log	User Name	admin			1
Device Configuration	Curtent Password				
Datasheet	New Password				
Manual	Re-type New Password				
	Batk			(	Change Password

Figure 19 - Security Settings Page

#### 3.6.3 VXIbus Settings

The VXIbus Settings page allows you to configure how the ProDAQ 3080 accesses the VXIbus.

0Epeborg 🕒 🔮 👘	60-00103393 Jocal. developing trus hand		한 후 연 🛛 🕄 • Gospie	P 🕈 🖸
bustec		ProDAQ 3080 Kibus Gigabit-LAN Slot-0 Interface		<b>اي ک</b> ا∉
Home IP Configuration VXDas instruments	Device Configuration	n		
Device States	Bus Timeout	1024 microseconds +		
System Log Device Configuration	Bus Arbiter Mode	Priority .		
Datasheet	Bus Arbiter Timeout	0 (dstabled) -		
Manual	Bus Requester Node	Fair -		
	Bus Requester Level	3 •		
	Sus Reg. Release Mode	Refease on request 🖌		
	Access Counter "ON"	512 Bytes +		
	Access Counter "OFF"	0 (disabled) +		
	Back	6	ResetForm	Save Values

Figure 20 - VXIbus Settings Page

**Bus Timeout** 

The time the on-board timer needs to expire once a VXIbus access by the 3080 is started. If it expires, a VXIbus slave did not respond correctly and a bus error is generated.

Possible values are: 16 µsec, 32 µsec, 64 µsec, 128

	μsec, 256 μsec, 512 μsec and 1024 μsec
Bus Arbiter Mode	Selects the bus arbiter mode. Possible values are: "Priority" or "Round Robin". (Remark: The arbiter is only enabled if the module is placed in the leftmost slot of a VXI mainframe, slot "0").
Bus Arbiter Timeout	Specifies the timeout for the arbiter. Possible values are: Disabled, 16 µsec, 256 µsec.
Bus Requester Mode	Sets the request mode of the ProDAQ 3080, "Fair" or "Demand".
Bus Requester Level	Selects the request level the module is using when accessing the VXIbus. Possible values are 3 to 0, with 3 as the highest priority and 0 as the lowest.
Bus Req. Release Mode	Selects the release mode: "RWD" (release when done) or "ROR" (release on request).
Access Counter "On"	Sets the number of bytes to transfer before a bus access can be interrupted. Possible values are 0 (disabled), 256 bytes, 1024 bytes, 2048 bytes, 4096 bytes, 8192 bytes and 16384 bytes.
Access Counter "Off"	Sets the time the accesses are paused before a new block is started. Possible values are: 0 (disabled), 2 $\mu$ s, 4 $\mu$ s, 8 $\mu$ s, 16 $\mu$ s, 32 $\mu$ s, 64 $\mu$ s, 128 $\mu$ s, 256 $\mu$ s, 512 $\mu$ s and 1024 $\mu$ s.

# Note:

Please note that any changes will be applied only at the next reboot of the device.

#### 3.6.4 Interrupt Configuration

The Interrupt Configuration page allows configuring the usage of the VXIbus interrupt lines in the allocation mechanism of the VXI resource manager.

Epeborg 🗐 🔛 🔶	080-00103393 Jocal. Heve tailing just 1		t) ⊤ C R - Soge	の音に
oustec	72 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 1	ProDAQ 3080 VXIbus Gigabit-LAN Slot-0 Interface		<b>₩XI</b>
tome	Paulie Carlina			
P Configuration	Device Configure	ation		
/XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX	Interrupt Configurat	ion		
lexice Station				
System Log	IRQ Love( 1	Auto 🔹		
Nevice Configuration	IRQ Level 2	Auto 🔹		
Natasheet	(RQ Level 3	Auto -		
tanual	IRQ Lavet 4	Auto 👻		
	IRQ Level 5	Auto +		
	IRQ Level 6	Auto 🗸		
	IRQ Level 7	Auto 🔸		
	Back	Þ	ResetForm	Save Values

Figure 21 - Interrupt Configuration Page

For each of the VXIbus interrupt lines (Level 1 to Level 7) one of two settings for the assignment can be chosen:

- Auto This setting will allow the resource manager to use the interrupt line for this level in his allocation mechanism.
- None This setting will prevent the resource manage to use the interrupt line for this level in his allocation mechanism. This setting must be used if a instrument in the system does not allow the dynamic allocation of interrupt lines and wants to use one or more lines permanently allocated.

# 3.6.5 CLK10 Configuration

This page allows you to enable or disable the CLK10 output on the ProDAQ 3080 front panel.

Epeborg 🖲 🚰 🔶	000-00103393.Jocal./devict-http://devict-http	d .	한 ㅠ 안 🔛 • Google	P 🕈 🖸
bustec		ProDAQ 3080 /XIbus Gigabit-LAN Slot-0 Interface		<b>XX</b>
Home IP Configuration VXIbus Instruments	Device Configuration	ion		in the second se
Device Status System Log	Front Panel CLK10	Disabled .		
Device Configuration Datasheet	Back		Read Form	Save Values

Figure 22 - CLK10 Configuration Page

#### 3.6.6 Reboot Device

If for any reason you need to reboot the ProDAQ 3080 remotely, you can use the button "Reboot Device" in the "Device Configuration" page. To avoid accidental usage of this feature, selecting the button will cause a verification dialog to pop-up before the actual reboot starts.

#### Note:

Please allow sufficient time for the device to reboot before trying to access it again. Please note as well that depending on your IP and network configuration the device may use a different IP address after reboot (e.g. DHCP).

#### 3.6.7 Firmware Update

To update the firmware on the ProDAQ 3080, use the "Update Firmware" button on the "Device Configuration" page.

ustec Ltd ProDAQ 3080-A	. 0010339 +				19	e.
	10456110.Jocal./ilevepidlig_off.html		tit ≠ C    <mark>Bl</mark> + Gospie	م	ŧ	8
oustec 27		DAQ 3080 t-LAN Slot-0 Interface		<u>الا</u>	bus	ĺ
iome P Configuration 20bus Instruments	Device Configuration					
exice States	FIG		Browse.			
erice Configuration	Back			Update Famware	e	
anual						
		2				

Figure 23 – Firmware Update Page

First save the file containing the new image on your local host. Press the "Browse..." to open the file upload dialog, which allows you to browse through your file system and select the file to upload. Once the correct file is selected, press the "Update Firmware" button. The upload progress and the programming progress will be displayed by a progress bar below the file selection control.

Final and				bed.e.
Bustec Ltd ProDAQ 3080-A	A - 9010339 +			
Kpeborg 🖲 🚰 🔶 🕈	000-00103393 Jocal./ sleve publig_utt Introl		😒 🖛 🖰  🚷 + Scople	P 🛉 🛍
bustec 12	N N	ProDAQ 3080 bus Gigabit-LAN Slot-0 Interface		
Home				
IP Configuration	Device Configuration			
V20bus instruments	Firmware Update			
Device Statten	File		Elewse.	1
System Log	rae.	The second secon	ERWee.	
Denice Configuration	Status			
Datasheet	Progress		15%	
Manual	Back			Update Fernware
		4		
Cappign & 1997-2013 Bullet Lt				www.lastec.com
stated of the second second to				WHICH AND A COURT

Figure 24 - Firmware Upload Progress

During the upload and programming, do not navigate away from the page by using the browser controls. Any interruption of the update process might render the ProDAQ 3080 unusable.

#### WARNING

Depending on your connection speed uploading and programming a new firmware image may take several minutes. To safely complete the process, do not navigate away from the page and do not interrupt the connection to the ProDAQ 3080 or power-cycle the mainframe.

# 3.7 Datasheet and Manual Pages

The "Datasheet" and "Manual" pages allow you to view the ProDAQ 3080 datasheet and user manual.

# Chapter 4 - Remote Operation

The ProDAQ 3080 Gigabit LAN Slot-0 Interface features a VXI-11 RPC server, which allows the access from remote hosts via the VISA library. This access can be done in two ways, either by accessing the VXIbus instruments separately as TCP/IP instruments or by mapping the ProDAQ 3080 into the remote VISA configuration as a standard VXIbus interface.

# 4.1 TCP/IP Instrument Access

To access the VXIbus instruments installed in the same mainframe as the ProDAQ 3080 interface, you will need to use resource strings in the format

TCPIP[board]::<host address>::<interface>,<logical address>[::INSTR]

where [board] is the optional index of the LAN interface devices (as default, device 0 is used); <host address> specifies the host name or IP number of the ProDAQ 3080 interface; <interface> specifies which interface on the ProDAQ 3080 to use (only "vxi0" is supported) and <logical address> specifies the logical address of the VXIbus instruments to access. The specification "::INSTR" is optional.

Example: If the ProDAQ 3080 is configured to use IP address 192.168.2.80 and is installed in the same mainframe as a VXIbus device configured for using logical address 2, access to this device can be gained by using the open statement

Hence, as the VXI-11 standard allows only for read/write RPC messages, only message based VXIbus instruments can be operated in this way.

## 4.2 Mapped Interface Access

To gain access to all VXIbus instruments via the ProDAQ 3080 Gigabit LAN Slot-0 Interface, it is necessary to map the ProDAQ 3080 as a standard VXIbus interface onto the host system.

To do so, select the "Bustec VISA Configuration Utility" in the Bustec VISA program group created during the installation of the VISA library ("Start"  $\rightarrow$  "Programs"  $\rightarrow$  "Bustec VISA"). Alternatively you can use a link in Bustec Agent. This will start the configuration tool for the VISA library and attached hardware interfaces.

📑 Bustec VISA Configuratio	n Utility	
Bu bustec	stec VISA Configuration	Utility plug&play
Adapters Interfaces	Network Instruments	Add Interface
VXI2	ProDAQ 3030 Ser.No. 10488548	Remove Interface Configure Interface Refresh List Resource Manager
		Close

Figure 25 - VISA Configuration Utility

To add a new interface, select "Add Interfaces". A new dialog "Add New Interface" is shown with a list of all devices found in the system. The already configured are disabled. Each interface is listed with its type and with a description containing the serial number of the device.

To map a remote interface, select the "Map Network Interface" button at the bottom.

Add New Interfa	ce ?
VISA Name 🛛	Interface Description
VXI2	ProDAQ 3030 Ser.No. 10488548
,	
interface number: (	0 Add all Add selected Cancel

Figure 26 - Add New Interface Dialog

In the "Map Network Interface" dialog you can specify the network address of the remote interface and the local interface on the remote server to use. In case ProDAQ 3080 only "vxi0" is supported.

The TCPIP interface number is a virtual value. It allows differentiation of TCPIP interfaces in case of conflict management when there are multiple VISAs installed in the system.

Map Network Interface	? <mark>×</mark>
TCPIP interface number:    5      IP address or host name:    192.168.2.80      Type:    vxi      Number:    0	
Descriptor TCPIP5:: 192. 168. 2.80:: vxi0	Cancel

Figure 27 - Map Network Interface Dialog

Click "Ok" to add the network interface. The procedure can be repeated to add more ProDAQ 3080 network interfaces for mapping.

Once the network interfaces are added, they can be configured with VXI interface numbers. The VXI interface numbers are assigned automatically from the pool of not yet used values. In order to change them, just select an interface and modify the value using the spin box control in the bottom.

📑 Add New Interfa	ce	? 💌
VISA Name 🖉	Interface Description	
VXII	TCPIP5::192.168.2.80::vxi0	
VXI2	ProDAQ 3030 Ser.No. 10488548	ß
Interface number: (	1 🖨 Map Network Interface Add all Add selected	Cancel

Figure 28 - Updated Available Interfaces List

Finally click "Add all" or "Add selected". The list in the main dialog will be updated with the newly added interfaces.



Figure 29 – Updated list of configured interfaces

As the remote interface is now mapped as a standard VXIbus interface onto the computer, the resource manager need to run to retrieve the instrument configuration from the remote host. To run the resource manager, select "Bustec VXIbus Resource Manager" from the Bustec VISA program group in the start menu ("Start"  $\rightarrow$  "Programs"  $\rightarrow$  "Bustec VISA") or use the link in Bustec Agent.

•	VXIbus Reso	ource Manager		L.	}		- • ×
	Resource Man	ager Finished					
				100%			
	Bustec VXI	[ Resource Ma	anager ver.	4.1.0.6581			
	Interface	VXI2 (Mapped	i to TCPIP5:	:192.168.2.	80::vxi0,0)		
	Slot	LA	Device	Address	Base	Size	
	0	0	Register	A16 Only			
	7	3	Register	A16/A32	0x20000000	0x10000000	
	-	ntput File: mData\Bustec\	\buvisa\bure	sman.out			
						Close	<< Details

Figure 30 - Resource Manager

#### Note

The VISA library is a shared library that initializes itself when it is first loaded by an application. Applications started while the VISA library is already loaded just share this configuration. Only when all applications using the VISA library are stopped, it will be unloaded by the system. Therefore all applications using the VISA library must be closed before running the resource manager or using the VISA configuration utility. Take special care while using integrated development environments, they will keep the VISA library loaded even when the application developed in them was stopped.

When the Resource Manager retrieves the configuration from the ProDAQ 3080 host, it's possible to access the remote VXI resources using VXI rather than TCPIP interface.

The Bustec VISA Assistant tool can be used to easily access the configured interfaces without programming.

Bustec VISA Assistant Bustec VISA Assistant Bustec VISA Assista	ant plug&play
Detected resources	Resource Information Manufacturer ID: 0xe70 (3696) Model code: 0xc6c (3180)
	Refresh About Close

Figure 31 – Bustec VISA Assistant

For more information on the tools coming with the Bustec VISA and application programming using the VISA library please refer to Bustec VISA Library and Tools User Manual.

28.7			
27.6	2 4	13.6%	
27.0			
o de d		2.1%	
20.0	۴ 4	1.0%	
24.8	9_ )	10. 20	
		0.3%	
-23_4	6 3	9.8%	
		10	
22 6	81		
200	101		
$\mathcal{O}_{\mathcal{A}}$			
01			
al	als.		
114	25.51	13.55 56.37	45.42
1 St JT	84.58	54.32	36.85
1 45.83	74,36	38.55	78.54
0 11.65	3636 4531	36.13 \$6.11	34,53
76.14 56.37	15:60 \$1.58	36.17 54.32	34.58
45.83	74.36	24.24	78.54
32,66		33.65 36.11	34,51
23.32	45,37	56.28	59.47
2. 26			
9.26			
9.26 5.34			
3.26 5.34 5.37			
9.26 5.34 6.37 6.83			
9.26 5.34 5.37 5.6			
26 3.34 5.35 5.65 2.4 5.65 5.65 2.5			
26 3.26 5.37 5.65 5.65 2.32			
26473 5.555 5.67 3.			
26 2 3 3 3 3 5 5 5 5 5 3 5 5 5 3 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5			
2.26 3.37 5.56 5.66 2.3 3.3 3.3 3.3 3.3 3.3 3.3 3.3			
26 26 37 38 67 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3			
26473362 26473362 26473362 2647336 263736 263736 2637 2637 2637 2637 2		11010	
26 26 3.37 3.66 3.36 5.66 3.35 6.56 5.66	13 55 55 55 55 55 55 55 55 55 55 55 55 55		1111
26473862 26473862 33877 3662 33877 3662 33877 3662 338777 3662 3387777 3662 37877777777777777777777777777777777777		00	
26 26 3 3 3 3 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5	0000	00	010
26373867 26373867 26373867 23387 235867 23387 235867 23387 235867 23387 235867 23387 235867 23387 235867 23387 235867 23387 235867 23387 235867 23387 235867 23387 235867 23387 235867 23387 235867 23387 23577 23577 235777 2357777777777777777		00	010

Bustec Ltd. Bustec House, Shannon Business Park Shannon, Co. Clare, Ireland Tel: +353 (0) 61 707100, FAX: +353 (0) 61 707106